
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 1, 2025 
 

Regular Meeting – 6:00 p.m. 
 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 

LARESHA THORNTON 
 



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK DEBBIE SWANSON • TREASURER STAN ELDRIDGE 
TRUSTEES: • KAREN LOVEJOY ROE • JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON • LARESHA THORNTON 
 
 

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
  TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2025 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website. 
 
 

  DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
 
 

3. FIRE DEPARTMENT HONORS 
 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 1, 2025, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,354,292.15 

 
6. ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 
 
  NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 

1. ACCEPT AND SIGN THE WASHTENAW COUNTY LEASE AGREEMENT FOR 
TEMPORARY USE OF THE 14A-2 COURTROOM AND OFFICE SUITE 

 
 
 
 

2. RESOLUTION 2025-07, AUTHORIZE PROPERTY SALE TO CHARLY ABELSON, LOCATED 
AT 1687 EMERSON AVE 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda  Page 2 April 1, 2025 

3. APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH MUNIVATE LLC FOR RECONCILIATION OF THE BOND 
AND ESCROW ACCOUNTS IN THE BS&A BUILDING MODULE, NOT TO EXCEED $11,100, 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #249-371-818.000 

 
 

4. RESOLUTION 2025-08, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS APPOINTMENTS TO WASHTENAW 
REGIONAL RECYCLING MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (WRRMA) 

 
 

5. RESOLUTION 2025-09, SUPPORT FOR 2025 MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL 
RESOURCES LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND APPLICATION 

 
 

6. RESOLUTION 2025-10, SUPPORT FOR 2025 MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL 
RESOURCES TRUST FUND GRANT APPLICATION 
 

 
7. RESOLUTION 2025-11, SUPPORT OF WASHTENAW COUNTY OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 

AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT’S WOODLAWN CEMETERY RESTORATION 
 
 

8. APPROVE AMENDMENT ONE OF THE MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING AND 
YARD WASTE CONTRACT WITH WASTE MANAGEMENT FOR AN EXTENSION OF FIVE 
YEARS 

 
 

9. APPROVE THE CONTRACTS WITH DESTINATION ANN ARBOR FOR ROWFEST 2025 
AND THE FORD LAKE REGATTA TO BE HELD ON FORD LAKE 

 
 
 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

1. ACCEPT THE BID FOR $364,000.00 FROM THE DIAMOND FIRM, INC FOR THE 
APPLERIDGE PARK PLAYGROUND REPLACEMENT AND WALKWAY PAVING WHICH IS 
FUNDED THROUGHT THE WASHTENAW COUNTY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
PROGRAM 

 
 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
 
 

• THREE MINUTES PER PERSON 
• ALL COMMENTS MUST BE ADDRESSED TO THE CHAIR 
• PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE ALSO WELCOMED AS THE BOARD ADDRESSES 

EACH AGENDA ITEM 
 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website 

Due to technical difficulties, there is no audio for this meeting. 
 
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
Supervisor Stumbo determined a quorum was present and made the board 
aware Trustee Peterson called to let her know she would not be present. 
 
Township Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm in 
the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Debbie Swanson, and 

Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
Trustees: Karen Lovejoy Roe, John Newman III, and LaResha 
Thornton 

Members Not Present: Trustee Gloria Peterson 
                 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent prayer. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to pull Statements and Checks 
from the Consent Agenda.  The motion was supported by Treasurer Eldridge. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MARCH 4, 2025 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,575,054.60 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 2 
 

 
2. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR FEBRUARY 

2025, IN THE AMOUNT OF $66,434.04 
3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR FEBRUARY 2025, IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $1,673.25 
 

C. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Clerk Swanson to 
approve the Minutes of March 4, 2025 Regular Meeting, the Clarity Healthcare 
Deductible ACH, Clarity Healthcare Admin Fee, and the Treasurer’s Report. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to not pay the McLain & Winters’ 
bill.  The motion failed due to no support. 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Clerk Swanson to 
approve the Statements and Checks. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
     
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

Legal update was provided by Attorney Winters including the following. 
• Culver’s 
• Ann Arbor One Apartments 

 
Bullet points included due to no audio. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-03, DAWN FARM 16TH ANNUAL RIDE 
FOR RECOVERY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST  

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 3 
 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Treasurer 
Eldridge to approve Resolution 2025-03, Dawn Farm 16th Annual Ride for 
Recovery Road Closure request. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

2. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-04, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF 724 S 
FORD BLVD 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
approve Resolution 2025-04, to authorize the sale of 724 S Ford Blvd. (see 
attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

3. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-05, FOR A PARTIAL TERMINATION OF 
A FARMLAND DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AGREEMENT FOR THE PUBLIC 
INTEREST 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe 
to approve Resolution 2025-05, for a partial termination of a Farmland 
Development Rights Agreement for the public interest. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

4. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-06, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
APPOINTMENTS  

 
Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 4 
 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Lovejoy 
Roe to approve Boards and Commissions Appointments. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

5. AUTHORIZE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION (WCRC) 
2025 SECOND AGREEMENT FOR LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS IN 
THE GREENE FARMS SUBDIVISION IN THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF 
$1,203,330.04, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #213-446-982.000 AND 
#101-902-981.130 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to authorize Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC) 2025 Second 
Agreement for local road improvements in the Greene Farms subdivision in the 
estimated amount of $1,203,330.04, budgeted in line item #213-446-982.000 
and #101-902-981.130. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

6. APPROVE LITIGATION TO ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AT A 
PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS 5593 JUSTIN CT, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-729-801.023  

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve litigation to abate a public nuisance at a property identified as 5593 
Justin Ct, budgeted in line item #101-729-801.023 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

7. APPROVE LITIGATION TO ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AT A 
PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS 1425 S HARRIS RD, BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101-729-801.023  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 5 
 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve litigation to abate a public nuisance at a property identified as 1425 
S Harris Ct, budgeted in line item #101-729-801.023 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 8. BUDGET AMENDMENT #4 

Clerk Swanson read the budget amendment into the record. 

A motion was made by Clerk Swanson and supported by Trustee Newman to 
approve budget amendment #4. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 
AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 

1. SEEK BID PROPOSALS FOR VEGETATION AND BLIGHT REMOVAL 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to seek bid proposals for Vegetation and Blight removal. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 
2. SEEK BID PROPOSALS FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP PLAYGROUND 

MULCH INSTALLATION 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Clerk Swanson to 
seek bid proposals for Ypsilanti Township Playground Mulch. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 6 
 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was 1 public comment sharing concerns about roundabout.  Included 
due to no audio. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There was 1 board member comment. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by 
Trustee Thornton. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:30PM 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-03 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Stony Creek Rd., to 
Textile Rd., to Hitchingham Rd., to Merritt Rd. (back to Stony Creek) on 
Sunday, April 27th from 10:00 am to 1:30 pm for the Ride for Recove ry  
5K /10K  Run /Wa lk  to benefit Dawn Farm Ride for Recovery. 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Washtenaw County Road Commission. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Tracy Puvalowski, 
Development Director of Dawn Farm be the authorized official designee in 
this instance, when application is made to the Washtenaw County Road 
Commission for this temporary road closure. 

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan 
hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-03 approved by the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on March 18, 2024. 

Debra A Swanson, Clerk
  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



 1 

RESOLUTION 2025-04    
 

Authorizing the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
to Sell to Purchaser Eliza Skelcey One Vacant Parcel 

Located at 724 N. Ford Blvd. 
 

  
 WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti holds title to a vacant 

parcel located at 724 N. Ford Blvd., title of which includes the legal 

description of the vacant parcel as follows: 

K-11-02-328-007, 724 N. Ford Blvd., Ypsilanti, MI 48198 with a 

legal description of YP#58-265 Lot 265, excluding S 3 ft thereof East 

Park Subdivision, 0.16 total acres.; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 20, 2025 Eliza Skelcey requested of the 

Ypsilanti Township Assessing Department to purchase the vacant lot as 

described above which she intends to utilize as a “garden lot,” and; 

 WHEREAS, at a regular Board meeting held on August 20, 2024 

the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees authorized the sale of the vacant 

lot which according to the “Market Valuation Report” prepared by Deputy 

Assessor Brian McCleery dated August 6, 2024 was valued at $7,000, 

and; 

 WHEREAS, on the 27th day of February, 2025 Purchaser Eliza 

Skelcey signed the proposed “Purchase Agreement” (a copy of which is 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference) in which the Purchaser  



2 

will remit to the Township the sum of $7,000 in accordance with the Market 

Valuation Report dated August 6, 2024.  

NOW, THEREFORE THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

1. That the Township Board accepts the Purchase Offer

submitted hereto and authorizes the execution of the “Purchase 

Agreement” by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo and Clerk Debra A. 

Swanson. 

2. That the Township authorizes Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk

Swanson to execute all documents required by Cislo Title to effectuate the 

transfer of the vacant parcel to Purchaser Eliza Skelcey once a closing 

date has been scheduled. 

3. That a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded to Cislo

Title as set forth in Paragraph 23 of the Purchase Agreement. 

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-04 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on March 18, 2025.  

Debra A Swanson, Clerk          
  Charter Township of Ypsilanti



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION 2025-05 

PARTIAL TERMINATION OF A FARMLAND 
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

-PUBLIC INTEREST- 
 

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2025 the township board received a 

request from Washtenaw County Road Commission for approval to have a 

certain parcel released from agreement number 81-66585-123132 which was 

executed in accordance with the provisions of PA 116 of 1974, commonly 

known as the Farmland and Open Space Preservation Act (“The Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the township board has reviewed this request and 

DETERMINED that THE RELEASE IS IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST and 

meets one or more conditions of 36111a. (1) (b) of Part 361 of the Natural 

Resources and Environmental Protection Act; and 

WHEREAS, the parcel proposed for release from the agreement is .114 

acres in size; and 

WHEREAS, the township board finds that the request for release of the 

particular parcel is acceptable. 

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above 
resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-05 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees 
assembled at a Regular Meeting held on March 18, 2025.  

Debra A Swanson, Clerk              
Charter Township of Ypsilanti



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Boards and Commissions Appointments 

Resolution No. 2025-06 

APPOINTMENTS 

Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) Exp. Date 
Thornton, LaResha  11/20/2028 
Hines, John (Alternate) 12/31/2028 

Washtenaw Area Transportation Study (WATS) Exp. Date 
Ajegba, Paul  Pleasure of the Board 

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify 
the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-06 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 
Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on March 18, 2025.  

Debra A Swanson, Clerk         
Charter Township of Ypsilanti



2025 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP SECOND AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2025, by and between the 
Township Board of Ypsilanti Township (“Ypsilanti Township”), Washtenaw County, and the Washtenaw 
County Board of County Road Commissioners (“WCRC”). 
 
WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township desires that certain improvements be made upon the local roads in the 
Township of Ypsilanti, and   
 
WHEREAS, proper authority is provided to the parties of the agreement under the provisions in Act 51 
of Public Acts of 1951 as amended, 
 
IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED, the WCRC will accomplish the improvements as specified herein, 
all in accordance with the standards of the WCRC, 
 
IT IS FURTHER AGREED, Ypsilanti Township shall pay WCRC for the actual project costs incurred for 
the project; and  
 
IT IS FURTHER AGREED, the WCRC will submit monthly invoices to the Township during the progress 
of the construction. Following project completion and final accounting of the project costs, WCRC will 
submit the final invoice for the actual remaining unpaid costs. The final invoice shall provide supporting 
detail and information, which reasonably identifies the actual project costs incurred by WCRC. The 
Township described herein agrees to remit payment within 30 days from receipt of WCRC invoices. 
 
Greene Farms Subdivision 2025: 
Work to include forestry, cold milling the existing pavement surface, replacement of deteriorated 
concrete curb and gutter, ADA sidewalk ramp upgrades, construction of a 2” hot mix asphalt 
wearing surface, and associated project restoration. 
 
Roads to include: 
 
(Phase 1) 
Greene Farm Drive, 515 feet west of Pioneer Dr to Whittaker Rd 
Pioneer Drive, Greene Farm Dr to Dover Dr 
Dover Drive, Oyster Bay Dr to end of road 
Oyster Bay Drive, Dover Dr to Bay Tree Dr 
 
(Phase 2) 
Greene Farm Drive, Dover Dr to 515 feet west of Pioneer Dr 
Dover Drive, Greene Farm Dr to Oyster Bay Dr 
 
(Phase 3) 
Dover Drive, Roxbury Dr to Greene Farm Dr 
Roxbury Drive, Berwick Dr to Dover Dr 
Richmond Drive, Berwick Dr to Dover Dr 
Rachel Drive, Hitchingham Rd to Dover Dr 
Berwick Drive, Roxbury Dr to Glacier Pointe Dr 
Glen Oaks Drive, Rachel Dr to Glacier Pointe Dr  

 
 
 

 
 
Estimated project cost for Greene Farms Subdivision 2025:      

  
$ 1,543,000.00  

 

       

    

         



2025 Ypsilanti Township Second Agreement 
 

 
AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

         
2024 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM      
Greene Farms Subdivision 2024 (Phases 1, 2, 3)   $ 1,543,000.00  
Less WCRC 2024 Local Matching Funds            $    339,669.96 
Subtotal        $ 1,327,330.04     

         

         
ESTIMATED AMOUNT TO BE PAID BY YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT DURING 2025: 

  
 $ 1,203,330.04  

 
 
          

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI:         
 
          
         
Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor  Debbie Swanson, Clerk 
 
 
WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION:         
 
 
          
         
Barbara Ryan Fuller, Chair    Matthew MacDonell, Managing Director 

 
 



Motion to Amend the 2025 Budget (#4)  

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $84,314 to $21,146,802 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $19,058 to $5,595,948 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Law Enforcement Fund budget by $139,663 to $10,381,490 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 4

MARCH 18, 2025

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $84,314.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $1,854.00

Net Revenues $1,854.00

Expenditures: Salary PTO Payout 101-191-708.004 $1,722.00

FICA 101-191-715.000 $132.00

Net Expenditures $1,854.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $78,560.00

Net Revenues $78,560.00

Expenditures: Furniture and Fixtures 101-901-975.135 $78,560.00

Net Expenditures $78,560.00

Revenues: Designated Loss Revenue ARPA 101-000-686.000 $3,900.00

Net Revenues $3,900.00

Expenditures: Lakeside Shelter Park 101-902-981.120 $3,900.00

Net Expenditures $3,900.00

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase $19,058.00

Revenues: Insurance Reimbursement 206-000-676.012 $19,058.00

Net Revenues $19,058.00

Expenditures: Communications 206-336-857.000 $19,058.00

Net Expenditures $19,058.00

Request to carryforward the approved funding for Engineering provided by Spicer Group at Lakeside Park. This 

was approved at the July 16, 2024 Board meeting.  This will be funded by appropriation of ARPA funds.

Request to carryforward the approved funding for new signs and installation provided by Bill Carr Signs, Inc. 

This was approved at the December 3, 2024 Board meeting.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year 

fund balance.

Request to increase the budget for PTO payout at 75%.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund 

balance. 

Request to increase the budget for replacement of lost radios. This will be funded by an insurance 

reimbursement. 

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 4

MARCH 18, 2025

266 - LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND Total Increase $139,663.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 266-000-699.999 $139,663.00

Net Revenues $139,663.00

Expenditures: Sheriff - CSO 266-301-831.015 $139,663.00

Net Expenditures $139,663.00

Request to add a new line and budget for a Community Service Officer (CSO). This is a contractual position 

provided by the Washtenaw County Sheriff's Department. The CSO position was approved at the March 19, 2024 

Board meeting. The CSO will provide support related to neighborhood watch and be the liaison between the 

Township and Sheriff's Office.  The position was filled by the Sheriff's Office in February 2025. This will be 

funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance.

2 of 2

















 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 





SPACE USE AGREEMENT 

AGREEMENT is made this 1st day of April, 2025, by the COUNTY OF 
WASHTENAW, a municipal corporation, with offices located in the County Administration 
Building, 220 North Main Street, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104("County" or "Lessor'') and 148 
District Court located 7200 S Huron, Ypsilanti Ml 48107 ("148 District Court" or "Lessee"). 

1. LEASED PREMISES: the County hereby leases to 148 District Court and Lessee
hereby rents from County approximately 1700 sq. feet on the first floor of the building
located at 415 W. Michigan, Ypsilanti Ml 48107 ("Premises").

2. TERMS: The lease term shall begin on the date of this agreement and ending when
the construction/remodeling of 7200 Huron has been completed, estimated to be no
later than December 21, 2025.

3. USE: 148 District Court shall only use the Premises for administrative, office use and
other uses related to their operations. No in person public services offer at the 415
Michigan location.

4. ACCESS TO PREMISES: During the term of the Lease County shall provide
access to Premises twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week. The County
reserves the right to access the Premises for the purposes described in this
agreement and otherwise. Where possible, and excepting emergency situations,
the County will provide 148 District Court with 24 hours' notice of building access,
unless such access is at 148 District Court's Request.

5. RENT: 148 District Court agrees to pay the County an annual rental amount of zero
($0.00) dollars.

6. UTILITIES and GENERAL MAINTENANCE: The parties agree that gas, electricity,
water, and basic janitorial and maintenance services provided by the County shall be
included in 148 District Court annual rental, provided, however, that all costs associated
with 148 District Court's purchase and/or use of existing or future telephone equipment
and lines shall be paid for by 148 District Court.

7. PARKING: The County will not provide any parking accommodations, 148 District
Court is responsible for all employee parking.

8. EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION: The County will be notified of any Premises related
emergency immediately after the emergency has been reported to the appropriate local
responding authorities. Notification will be made to: 1) the contact information listed at
the conclusion of this contract; and 2) the County Help Desk at (734) 222- 3737.











1 

RESOLUTION 2025-07 

Authorizing the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
to Sell to Purchaser Charly Marie Ableson One Vacant 

Parcel Located at 1687 Emerson Avenue 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti holds title to a vacant 

parcel located at 1687 Emerson Ave., title of which includes the legal 

description of the vacant parcel as follows: 

K-11-14-482-002, 1687 Emerson Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 with

a legal description of YP#104-890 lot 1210 Watsonia Park Sub and 

the N ½ of the vacated street located S of said lot; and 

WHEREAS, on January 28, 2025 Charly Marie Ableson requested 

of the Ypsilanti Township Assessing Department to purchase the vacant lot 

as described above which she intends to combine with her residential 

property located at 1669 Emerson Avenue, and; 

WHEREAS, at a regular Board meeting held on the 1st day of April, 

2025 the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees authorized the sale of the 

vacant lot which according to the “Market Valuation Report” prepared by 

Deputy Assessor Brian McCleery dated January 28, 2025 was valued at 

$4,000, and; 

WHEREAS, on the 18th day of March, 2025 Purchaser Charly 

Marie Ableson signed the proposed “Purchase Agreement” (a copy of 



 2 

which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference) in which the 

Purchaser will remit to the Township the sum of $4,000 in accordance with 

the Market Valuation Report dated January 28, 2025.  

 NOW, THEREFORE THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

 1. That the Township Board accepts the Purchase Offer 

submitted hereto and authorizes the execution of the “Purchase 

Agreement” by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo and Clerk Debra A. 

Swanson. 

 2. That the Township authorizes Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk 

Swanson to execute all documents required by Cislo Title to effectuate the 

transfer of the vacant parcel to Purchaser Charly Marie Ableson once a 

closing date has been scheduled. 

 3. That a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded to Cislo 

Title as set forth in Paragraph 23 of the Purchase Agreement. 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 
 
 
Date:  March 24, 2025 
 
 
To:      Ypsilanti Township Board  
   
 
 
From: Brian McCleery,  
  Deputy Assessor 
 
 
Re:  Agenda Item to Authorize Property Sale to Charly Ableson 
  
  K-11-14-482-002 1687 Emerson Ave 
 
   
 
The Assessor’s Office is requesting approval of Resolution 2025-07 to 
authorization the sale of the above property to Charly Ableson for $4,000 plus 
all closing costs.      
 
Ms. Ableson agrees to combine this parcel with her adjacent home parcel. The 
purchase agreement stipulates that the property cannot be utilized for the 
construction of any building including but not limited to a single-family 
residential structure and/ or accessory buildings without the consent of the 
Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees. Further if a single-family home is built 
on the property, it will not become a rental property.  
 
Attached you will find the Resolution 2025-07, the purchase agreement, and 
aerial photographs of the property.  If you have any questions or need more 
information, please don’t hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This Purchase Agreement (Agreement) made this 18th day of 

March, 2025, between Charly Marie Ableson, a married woman, whose 

address is 1669 Emerson Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 (hereinafter referred 

to as "Purchaser") and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan 

Charter Township, whose administrative offices are located at 7200 S. Huron 

River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 (hereinafter "Seller"). 

WITNESSETH: 

Whereas, Seller owns one vacant parcel ofland located in the Charter 

Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, State of Michigan, which parcel 

is identified as follows: 

K-11-14-482-002, 1687 Emerson Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI

48198 with a legal description ofYP#104-890 lot 1210 Watsonia 

Park Sub and the N ½ of the vacated street located S of said lot, 

Whereas, Purchaser is interested in acquiring the aforementioned 

parcel owned by Seller, which parcel is located at 1687 Emerson Ave., 

Ypsilanti, MI, (hereinafter "Property"). 

It is hereby agreed as follows: 

1 

























DAVID
 AVE

SHELLY
 AVE COOLIDGE AVE

O
U

T
E

R
 L

N

"

40

"

"

"

125

"
71

.5
9

14

"

120.82

"

"
"

"

60

139.09

"

"

52

"
"

40

"

40

15
2

.11

120.45

57

120

"

"

40

66

"

14
9

.5
9

70

50
.0

5

"

37

60
.0

5

60

138.25

"

30

89.79

53

60

20

"

15.9

"

80

"

"

"

76

125

12.11'

80

139.99

"

138.65

142.39

40
"

40

"

"

70

123.19

30

"

"

"

13
40

40

28

25

"

12
0

"

"

"

145

"

145

130.4

61.8

60

60

50

40

137.45

"

"

50

131.6

"

"

"

50
.2

9

"

37

40

68

"

145

12
0

60

55

80.89

122.35

17
0

.2
9

"

"

15
0

"

60

20

"

"

52.1

55.4

88.85

135.65

"

25

70

128.6

65

"

60

60

56

70

"

"

120.09

15

"

59
.2

139.85

"

40
.0

4

12
0

"

80

12
0

131

37

65

40

40

"

"

"

134.82

60

135.05

"

50
.0

5

100

80

"

"

"

"

"

129.8

40

"

"

60

"

70

50

84.95

"

"

"

"

""

"

"

60

"

10

"

80

139.25

"

"

"

"

"

40

128

62

68

"

"

8.39'

20

"

66

121.54

"

119.56

"

"

"

152.98

"

"

40

20

40

120.89

"

"

12
0

92

"

"

"

120

"

66

"

"

40

60

"

26

"

40

"

37

40

40

20

40

"

40

"

"

"

129.76

86
.1

5

120

124.64

129.2

135

40

"

"

"

136.85

"

"

120.45

"

40

12
0

"

"

46
.5

8

65

85

50

136.25

"

60

25

70

"

"

"

"

"

40

"

60

20

20

20

120.45

"

"

122.16

60

"

145

"

15
1

.3
6

66

50

"

"

"80

"

122.12

20

135

40

"

62.21

"

20

"

40

125

40

"

"

"

70

132.8

"

138.91

"

"

"

65

"

"

"

"

"

75

40

20

"

145

"

"

"

37

"

40

"

"

12

"

"

65

"

100

40

18

145

24.2

"

120.56

"

20

12
1.

14

"

40

12
0

"

"

100

"

115.7

"

40

60

"

60.21
125

78

52.79

"

19.6'

40

80

120

40

20

"

"

17
1

145

9111439
91213381331

12301223

924
923
922
921
920
919
918
917
916
915
914
913

1129

1128

1127

1126

1114
1438

1437

1436

1435

1434

1433

1432

1431

1430

1429

1428

1427

1426

1425

1424

1423

1422

1421

1420

1364

1363

1362

1361

1360

1359

1358

1357

1350

1349

1348

1347

1346

1345

1344

1343

1342

1341

1340

13391330

1329

1328

1327

1326

1325

1324

1323

1322

1315

1314

1313

1312

1311

1310

1309

1308

1307

1306

13051256

1255

1254

1253

1252

1251

1250

1249

1248

1247

1246

1245

1244

1239

1238

1237

1236

1235

1234

1233

1232

1231

1214

1213

1212

1211

1210

1209

1208

1207

1206

1205

1204

1203

1202

1201

1200

1199

1198

1197

1147

1146

1145

1144

1143

1142

1141

1140

1139

1138

1137

1136

1135

1134

1133

1132

1131

1130

1113

1112

1111

1110

1109

1108

1107

1106

1105

1104

1103

1102

1101

1100

1099

1098

1097

1096

1095

1094

1093

1092

1091

1090

557

539

538

537

536

535

534

521

520

519

518
517

509 494

493

492

491

490

489

488

487

486

485

484

483

482

481

480

479

478

910
909
908
907
906
9051442

1441

1440
1337

1336

13351334

1333

13321229

1228

12271226

1225

1224
477

476

475

1321

1318

925

937

938

1413

1414

-016

-008

-022

-007

-005

-007

-017

-015

-009

-001

-023

-003

-018

-025

-024

-002

-001

-002

-009

-001

-021

-001

-004

-013

-007

-026

-016

-025

-010

-003

-004

-012

-028
-026

-008

-002

-002

-011

-001

-019

-014

-003

-001

-027

-015

-013

-003

-001

-003

-012-002

-020

-004

-022

-010

-030-021
-001

-004

-001-026

-005

-021

-010 -019
-011

-020

-002

-006

-015

-017

-022

-013

-023

-014

-012

-010

-004

-012

-027
-005

-027
-024

-025

-014

-009

-032

-006

-011

-007

-016

-017

-002 -002

-003

-011

-005

-013

-003

-006

-005

-009

-001

-024

-003

-031

-004

-026

-006

-008

-004

-023

-030

-025

-013

-020

-010

-014

-015

-007

-016

-009

-006

-002

-027

-003

-008

-005

-020

-009

-024

-016

-017

-018

-015

-019

-0
23

-025

-031

-029

-999

-016

-0
1
4

-019

-018

K -11-14-440-023

K -11-14-481-025

K -11-14-483-031

K -11-14-439-016

K -11-14-482-008

K
 -11-14-440-022

K -11-14-482-007

K -11-14-435-005

K -11-14-481-007

K
 - 11

-1
4- 43

9
- 0

1
7

K -11-14-439-015

K -11-14-482-009

K -11-14-481-001

K -11-14-482-023

K -11-14-440-003

K -11-14-439-018

K -11-14-483-025

K -11-14-440-024

K -11-14-440-002

K
 - 11

- 1
4 -45

5
- 0

11

K
 -11

-1 4-43
9

-00
1

K
 -11-14-439-002

K -11-14-401-009

K
 - 11

- 1
4- 4 3

5
- 0

0
1

K
 -11-14-440-021

K -11-14-441-001

K -11-14-440-004

K -11-14-401-013

K -11-14-401-007

K -11-14-483-026

K -11-14-455-016

K -11-14-440-025

K -11-14-401-010

K -1
1-

14
-4

35
-0

03

K -1
1-

14
-4

35
-0

04

K -11-14-401-012

K -11-14-402-028

K -11-14-440-026

K -11-14-401-008

K -1
1-

14
-4

35
-0

02

K
 -11-14-455-002

K
 -11

-1
4-4 5

5- 0
0

1

K -11-14-439-019

K -11-14-455-014

K -11-14-402-011

K -11-14-482-003

K -1
1-

14
-4

40
-0

01
K -1

1-1
4-

44
0-

02
7

K -11-14-455-015

K -11-14-455-013

K
 -11-14-455-003

K -11-14-439-005

K -11-14-405-001

K -11-14-439-003

K -11-14-402-012

K -11-14-405-002

K -11-14-439-020K -11-14-439-004

K -11-14-439-022
K -11-14-405-010

K -11-14-483-030

K -11-14-439-021

K -11-14-483-001

K -11-14-455-004

K -11-14-407-001

K -11-14-482-026

K -11-14-482-005

K -11-14-482-021

K -11-14-482-010 K -11-14-482-019

K -11-14-483-011

K -11-14-482-020

K -11-14-482-002

K -11-14-482-006

K -11-14-403-015

K -11-14-403-017

K -11-14-482-022

K -11-14-403-013

K -11-14-483-023

K -11-14-403-014

K -11-14-403-012

K -11-14-483-010

K -11-14-483-004

K -11-14-405-012

K -11-14-483-027

K -11-14-483-005

K -11-14-481-027

K -11-14-483-024

K -11-14-482-025

K -11-14-405-014

K -11-14-483-009

K -11-14-483-032

K -11-14-483-006

K -11-14-405-007

K -11-14-403-016

K -11-14-481-017

K -11-14-483-002

K -11-14-407-002

K -11-14-405-011

K -11-14-405-003

K -11-14-405-005

K -11-14-405-013

K -11-14-483-003

K -11-14-401-006

K -11-14-401-005

K -11-14-405-009

K -11-14-401-011

K -11-14-482-001

K -11-14-402-024

K -11-14-481-003

K -11-14-402-031

K -11-14-405-004

K -11-14-402-026

K -11-14-405-006

K -11-14-405-008

K -11-14-401-004

K -11-14-402-023

K -11-14-402-030

K -11-14-402-025

K -11-14-402-013

K -11-14-405-020

K -11-14-402-010

K -11-14-402-014

K -11-14-402-015

K -11-14-402-007

K -11-14-402-009

K -11-14-402-006

K -11-14-481-002

K -11-14-402-027

K -11-14-407-003

K -11-14-402-008

K -11-14-402-005

K -11-14-403-009

K -11-14-481-020

K -11-14-482-024

K -11-14-401-016

K -11-14-401-017

K -11-14-401-018

K -11-14-401-015

K -11-14-401-019

K -11-14-401-020

K -11-14-402-029

K -11-14-407-999

K -11-14-402-016

K
 -11

- 1
4-4 01

-0
14

K -11-14-403-019

K -11-14-403-018

E
M

E
R

S
O

N
 L

N



"

40

30

"

30

145

"

50

"

145

"

"

50
.0

5

50

"

"

10

"

40

"

"

"

135

40

20

"

20

40

"

145

40

"
40

1246

1245

1244

12391214

1213

1212

1211

1210

1209

1208

12071138

1137

1136

1135

1134

1133

1132

1131

-003

-010

-030
-026

-002

-006

-012

-025

-011

-013

-001

-024-031
K -11-14-483-031

K -11-14-482-003

K -11-14-405-010

K -11-14-483-030

K -11-14-482-026

K -11-14-482-002

K -11-14-482-006

K -11-14-405-012

K -11-14-482-025

K -11-14-405-011

K -11-14-405-013

K -11-14-482-001

K -11-14-482-024



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

TO: 

From: 

Date: 

RE: 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board Trustees 

Javonna Neel, Accounting Director 

March 20, 2025 

Authorization to approve agreement with Munivate LLC for reconciliation of 
the bond and escrow accounts in the BS&A Building module not to exceed  
$11,100, budgeted in line item 249-371-818.000.  

The Accounting Department is requesting authorization to accept the quote from Munivate LLC 
and approve the contract to perform the necessary reconciliation and in-depth analysis of the 
bond and escrow accounts in the BS&A system. Munivate will develop a report with the 
findings and recommendations for reconciliation. If approved, the review will begin on July 7, 
2025, and go through July 18, 2025. The audit period will cover bonds and escrows from the 
inception of the Building BS&A Software in 2002 through the current period.  

Manual tracking of the bonds and escrow was done on Quicken software until the building 
module was integrated with the BS&A cash receipting, accounts payable, and general ledger 
modules in 2017. This has made a terrific difference in the tracking of the bonds and escrow 
accounts. Munivate will make suggestions on how the staff can efficiently maintain and update 
bond and escrow accounts to keep it reconciled as projects open and close. 

Munivate consultant Kevin Keyes has extensive experience with the BS&A programming and 
has assisted our Building and Ordinance Departments as well as other municipalities in the 
area. Our staff has had nothing but positive things to say about how Mr. Keyes has been helping 
them with processing, tracking, and billing.  

The estimate, description and contract are attached. Thank you for your consideration. 

cc: Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 
Debbie Swanson, Clerk 
Stan Eldridge, Treasurer 
Dave Bellers, Chief Building Official 
Attorney Winters 

















 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
 
Date:   March 25, 2025 
 
RE:     Resolution 2025-08: Boards and Commissions Appointments 
 
Washtenaw Regional Recycling Management Authority (WRRMA) has asked us to update our 
delegate/alternate list through board action. Please find attached a Resolution reappointing John 
Hines as delegate to WRRMA with Brenda Stumbo as the alternate.  
 
Ypsilanti Township is one of the eight municipalities who form WRRMA, along with Ann Arbor 
Charter Township, Pittsfield Charter Township, Scio Township, and the cities of Ann Arbor, 
Dexter, Saline, and Ypsilanti. WRRMA aims to increase the quantity of high quality recycling in 
member communities. Being a member requires a payment of $5,000 per year, which is 
budgeted in 101-101-958.000. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Boards and Commissions Appointments 

 
Resolution No. 2025-08 

 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
         
Washtenaw Regional Recycling Management Authority (WRRMA) Exp. Date 
Hines, John (Delegate)       Pleasure of the Board 
Stumbo, Brenda (Alternate)       Pleasure of the Board 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:        Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:    John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:    March 25, 2025 
 
RE: Resolution 2025-09: Support for 2025 Michigan Department of Natural 

Resources Land and Water Conservation Fund Application 
 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees to 
consider authorization of the resolution for the 2025 Michigan Land and Water Conservation  
Fund Development Grant for the North Bay Park Boardwalk Trail improvements. 
 
If approved, township staff with Ernat Consulting will submit LWCF grant paperwork to the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources for the 2025 grant cycle.  The project for North Bay 
Park will focus on replacement of the wooden boardwalk decking if approximately 24,400 
square feet.  Due to use and weatherization, the board walk needs repair and was identified as a 
priority in the 2024 Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  The total funds projected to resurface the 
boardwalk and pathway improvements are $702,000 per the engineer’s probable cost statement. 
 
This resolution is to submit the grant paperwork to the MDNR for approval.  If the board 
supports the pursuit of the Land and Water Conservation Fund grant application, it is committing 
to provide the 50% match to the grant of $351,000 which would be funded from the Bike, 
Sidewalk, Recreation and Road fund.  If application is awarded, a contract and budget 
amendment will be brought back to the board at that time.   
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION 2025-09 

 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR 2025 MDNR LAND AND WATER  

CONVSERVATION FUND APPLICATION 
 

WHEREAS, this Board is committed to providing quality parkland and 

trails to its residents and visitors and approved the 2024 Recreation Master 

Plan; and 

WHEREAS, this Board recognizes that the 2024 Recreation Master 

Plan has identified the resurfacing of the North Bay Park Boardwalk trail as 

a priority project; and 

WHEREAS, this Board wishes to utilize the MDNR Land and Water 

Conservation Fund for a matching grant to resurface and improve the North 

Bay Park Boardwalk trail for safety improvements; and 

WHEREAS, this Board acknowledges it has received a cost estimate in 

the form of an Engineer's Probable Cost statement and anticipates the 

resurfacing and improvement of the North Bay Park Boardwalk trail in 

accordance with the specification in the grant application in the amount of 

$702,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board supports the 
pursuit of the MDNR Land and Water Conservation Fund grant application 
and will provide the match to the grant, if approved, in the amount of 
$351,000.   

 
 
 
I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 

Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-09 approved by 
the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on April 1, 2025.  

 
 

Debra A Swanson, Clerk                                                                   
                             Charter Township of Ypsilanti  









 



        

 
 

1001 Woodward Ave., Suite 1400  •  Detroit, Michigan 48226  •  (313) 961-4266  •  Fax (313) 961-4869  •  semcog.org 

 
Gwen Markham 

Chairperson 
Commissioner,  
Oakland County 

Anne Marie Graham-Hudak  
Vice Chairperson 

Supervisor, 
 Canton Township 

Laura Kropp 
Vice Chairperson 

Mayor, City of  
Mount Clemens 

Joe LaRussa 
Vice Chairperson 

Mayor, City of 
Farmington 

Diana McKnight-Morton 
Vice Chairperson 

Trustee, Washtenaw 
Community College 

 

Frank Viviano 
Vice Chairperson 

Supervisor, 
 Macomb Township 

Amy O’Leary 
Executive Director  

 

 

March 26, 2025 
 
Clay Summers 
Manager, Grants Management Section 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
 
Re: Support for North Bay Park Boardwalk Restoration– Ypsilanti Township  
 
Dear Mr. Summers, 

This letter confirms support from SEMCOG, the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments, for 
the application from Ypsilanti Township to renovate the North Bay Park Boardwalk with funding 
from the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund. This project aims to provide safe and equitable 
access by replacing the wood of the boardwalk decking on the North Bay Park Boardway Trail. 

SEMCOG is a regional planning partnership that supports coordinated local planning among over 
180 units of local government across seven counties in Southeast Michigan. SEMCOG engages 
regional stakeholders and analyzes park data to ensure that our recreation system meets the 
quality of life, health, and accessibility needs of residents and visitors, along with regional 
economic development goals and environmental priorities. This proposal from Ypsilanti Township 
will help achieve SEMCOG’s vision for the region, and implement several priorities established 
through stakeholder-driven processes, including: 

• Promote healthy lifestyles and vibrant communities with expanded options for 

pedestrian and bicycle mobility, recreation, and tourism. 

• Ensure equitable access to recreation opportunities for people of all backgrounds, 

ages, and abilities in Southeast Michigan. 

• Connect all people to the places they live with infrastructure and services that support 

a high quality of life. 

Our region’s recreation system continues to see increased demand for outdoor opportunities, and 
investing in this proposal will positively impact quality of life in both Ypsilanti Township and 
Southeast Michigan. We hope that this application will have the full support of the Michigan Natural 
Resources Trust Fund Board / DNR Grants team. 

 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Amy O’Leary 
Executive Director 

 

https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=BicycleAndPedestrianMobilityPlanForSoutheastMichiganMarch2020.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=BicycleAndPedestrianMobilityPlanForSoutheastMichiganMarch2020.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=ParksAndRecreationPlanForSoutheastMichiganMay2019.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=ParksAndRecreationPlanForSoutheastMichiganMay2019.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=IncreasingSharedProsperityForAResilientEconomy_March2021.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=IncreasingSharedProsperityForAResilientEconomy_March2021.pdf


 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:        Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:    John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:    March 26, 2025 
 
RE: Resolution 2025-10: Support for 2025 Michigan Department of Natural 

Resources Trust Fund Grant Application 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees to 
consider authorization of the resolution for the 2025 Michigan Trust Fund Grant for the North 
Bay Park Pavilion and Bathroom improvements. 
 
If approved, township staff with Ernat Consulting will submit TF grant paperwork to the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources for the 2025 grant cycle.  The project for North Bay 
Park will focus on repair of the pavilion and connected bathrooms approximately 1,300 square 
feet.  Due to use and age, the pavilion and bathrooms need repair and were identified as a priority 
in the 2024 Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  The existing structure is over 40 years old and in 
need of replacement to meet the demand of the park.  The total funds projected to replace the 
pavilion, and bathrooms are $617,200 per the engineer’s probable cost statement. 
 
This resolution is to submit the grant paperwork to the MDNR for approval.  If the board 
supports the pursuit of the Trust Fund grant application, it is committing to provide the 50% 
match to the grant of $308,600 which would be funded from the Bike, Sidewalk, Recreation and 
Road fund.  If application is awarded, a contract and budget amendment will be brought back to 
the board at that time.   
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION 2025-10 

 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR 2025 MDNR TRUST FUND APPLICATION 

 

WHEREAS, this Board is committed to providing quality parkland and 

trails to its residents and visitors and approved the 2024 Recreation Master 

Plan; and 

WHEREAS, this Board recognizes that the 2024 Recreation Master Plan 

has identified the replacement of the North Bay Park pavilion and restrooms 

as a priority project; and 

WHEREAS, this Board wishes to utilize the MDNR Trust Fund for a 

matching grant to replace the North Bay Park pavilion and restrooms as a 

key park amenity; and 

WHEREAS, this Board acknowledges it has received a cost estimate in 

the form of an Engineer's Probable Cost statement and anticipates the 

demolition and construction of the North Bay Park pavilion and restrooms in 

accordance with the specification in the grant application in the amount of 

$617,200. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board supports the 

pursuit of the MDNR Trust Fund grant application and will provide the match 

to the grant, if approved, in the amount of $308,600.   

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above 
resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-10 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees 
assembled at a Regular Meeting held on April 1, 2025.  

 

Debra A Swanson, Clerk                                                                   
                             Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 













 



        

 
 

1001 Woodward Ave., Suite 1400  •  Detroit, Michigan 48226  •  (313) 961-4266  •  Fax (313) 961-4869  •  semcog.org 

 
Gwen Markham 

Chairperson 
Commissioner,  
Oakland County 

Anne Marie Graham-Hudak  
Vice Chairperson 

Supervisor, 
 Canton Township 

Laura Kropp 
Vice Chairperson 

Mayor, City of  
Mount Clemens 

Joe LaRussa 
Vice Chairperson 

Mayor, City of 
Farmington 

Diana McKnight-Morton 
Vice Chairperson 

Trustee, Washtenaw 
Community College 

 

Frank Viviano 
Vice Chairperson 

Supervisor, 
 Macomb Township 

Amy O’Leary 
Executive Director  

 

 

March 26, 2025 
 
Clay Summers 
Manager, Grants Management Section 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
 
Re: Support for North Bay Park Pavilion Restoration– Ypsilanti Township  
 
Dear Mr. Summers, 

This letter confirms support from SEMCOG, the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments, for 
the application from Ypsilanti Township to renovate the North Bay Park Pavilion with funding 
from the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund. This project aims to provide safe and equitable 
access by replacing the pavilion and bathroom in North Bay Park. 

SEMCOG is a regional planning partnership that supports coordinated local planning among over 
180 units of local government across seven counties in Southeast Michigan. SEMCOG engages 
regional stakeholders and analyzes park data to ensure that our recreation system meets the 
quality of life, health, and accessibility needs of residents and visitors, along with regional 
economic development goals and environmental priorities. This proposal from Ypsilanti Township 
will help achieve SEMCOG’s vision for the region, and implement several priorities established 
through stakeholder-driven processes, including: 

• Promote healthy lifestyles and vibrant communities with expanded options for 

pedestrian and bicycle mobility, recreation, and tourism. 

• Ensure equitable access to recreation opportunities for people of all backgrounds, 

ages, and abilities in Southeast Michigan. 

• Connect all people to the places they live with infrastructure and services that support 

a high quality of life. 

Our region’s recreation system continues to see increased demand for outdoor opportunities, and 
investing in this proposal will positively impact quality of life in both Ypsilanti Township and 
Southeast Michigan. We hope that this application will have the full support of the Michigan Natural 
Resources Trust Fund Board / DNR Grants team. 

 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Amy O’Leary 
Executive Director 

 

https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=BicycleAndPedestrianMobilityPlanForSoutheastMichiganMarch2020.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=BicycleAndPedestrianMobilityPlanForSoutheastMichiganMarch2020.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=ParksAndRecreationPlanForSoutheastMichiganMay2019.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=ParksAndRecreationPlanForSoutheastMichiganMay2019.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=IncreasingSharedProsperityForAResilientEconomy_March2021.pdf
https://www.semcog.org/desktopmodules/SEMCOG.Publications/GetFile.ashx?filename=IncreasingSharedProsperityForAResilientEconomy_March2021.pdf


 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
 
Date:   March 26, 2025 
 
RE:     Resolution 2025-11: Support of Washtenaw County Office of Community and 

Economic Development’s Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 
 
The Township was approached by Kat Slocum from the Washtenaw County Office of 
Community and Economic Development (OCED) who provided a Woodlawn Cemetery 
Restoration Plan, attached. The Woodlawn Cemetery is located at 7800 S Huron River Drive and 
has been abandoned since the 1960s. 
 
There are over 150 individuals who are buried at this site, 57 of which can be directly linked to 
names. These include veterans and African Americans who were instrumental in the 
development and history of Ypsilanti Township. The Restoration Plan will remove overgrowth 
and invasive species and replace with low maintenance native plantings. 
 
The Supervisor’s Office and Community Resource Department are in support of this plan to 
restore dignity to this site. Municipal Services Director John Hines has agreed to send out parks 
and grounds crew to mow twice a year which can be our in kind donation. 
 
Attached please find Resolution 2025-09. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 
cc:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
   Laurie Lutomski, Community Resource Coordinator   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Support of Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic Development’s 

Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 
Resolution No. 2025-09 

WHEREAS, there is a historic abandoned cemetery within the boundary of Ypsilanti 
Township; and, 

WHEREAS, this cemetery is located on parcel K-11-21-403-001, commonly known as 7800 S 
Huron River Drive; and, 

WHEREAS, it does not appear that there is a legal owner of this property; and, 

WHEREAS, this cemetery is not active, meaning that no new burials are, or will take place on 
this property; and, 

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township recognizes the historic importance of the cemetery, including 
the fact that many veterans and African Americans who were central to the development and 
history of Ypsilanti Township were buried here; and,  

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township was approached by the Washtenaw County Office of 
Community and Economic Development with a Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the plan brought forward looks to be well thought out and sustainable; and, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees is in 
support of the Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic Development to 
implement their Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan. 



Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 
Ypsilanti, MI 

 

 

March 6th, 2025 

https://www.washtenaw.org/641/Historic-Preservation


 

Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 1 

 

1. Introduction 

Woodlawn Cemetery in Ypsilanti Township is a historic African American Cemetery which has 
been abandoned since the late 1960s. Initial research indicates that Woodlawn Cemetery has 
served as the final resting place for over 150 African Americans whose lives were central to the 
development and history of Ypsilanti. Historic burial records, including grave locations, were 
lost in a fire sometime in the 1950s-1960s. Utilizing historic newspapers, death certificates, and 
other gray literature, approximately 57 individuals have been identified as Woodlawn Cemetery 
burials. Over the years, the cemetery has faced environmental degradation and the natural effects 
of time. This restoration plan outlines the necessary actions to preserve and protect the historic 
cemetery for future generations while maintaining its historical integrity. 

 

2. Project Objectives 

• Restore the landscape and grounds by removing overgrowth, planting low maintenance 
groundcover, and filling in collapsed burial locations.  

• Locate and mark burial locations through Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) survey. 
• Recover lost headstones and complete restoration to facilitate understanding of 

individuals buried there and enhance our understanding of the historic site.  
• Preserve and protect few visible gravestones to ensure long term preservation. 
• Enhance historical research and education through interpretive signage and guided 

tours. 
• Foster community involvement throughout the restoration process. 
• Ensure environmental sustainability and manage the site’s ecological needs. 

 

3. Scope of Work 

The restoration project will be carried out in multiple phases to ensure the careful preservation of 
all historical elements. At all phases of the project, community involvement and engagement are 
integral. The scope of work includes the following key components: 

A. Landscape and Grounds Restoration 

• Tree and Plant Maintenance: Identify and preserve any historically significant trees or 
plantings. Remove overgrowth and invasive species while ensuring healthy growth of 
surrounding greenery. 

• Groundcover planting: plant low maintenance groundcover to facilitate low 
maintenance. 

• Drainage and Erosion Control: Improve drainage systems to prevent water damage and 
erosion, which can threaten the stability of gravestones and monuments. 

B. Complete Burial Survey  



 

Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 2 

 

• Assess: Conduct a detailed inventory and condition assessment of all visible gravestones 
and markers. 

• Survey: Use non-invasive GPR survey to locate burial locations, determine number of 
interred, and locate buried gravestones.  

• Define: Mark the locations of burials to facilitate preservation, planning, and research.  

C. Gravestone Restoration 

• Recover: Complete recovery of subsurface gravestones, write condition assessment, and 
establish restoration plan.  

• Restore: Utilize non-invasive cleaning to repair and clean existing gravestones and 
markers.  

• Replace: 14 veteran burial markers utilizing VA replacement program.  
• Reinstall: stabilize ground and reinstall markers at respective burial locations.  

D. Historic Marker Installation 

• Research: Complete archival research on interred individuals and draft text and design 
for historic marker or interpretive panel sign installation at the site.  

• Install: Create stable foundation for sign installation and complete install.  

 

4. Preservation Techniques (Guided by Michigan SHPO manual)  

• Non-invasive Cleaning: Only use non-invasive survey (GPR and LiDAR) and gentle 
cleaning methods to protect the integrity of stone and metal surfaces. Employ gentle 
cleaning techniques (e.g., soft brushes, mild detergents, and water) for gravestones to 
remove dirt, lichen, and moss. Avoid abrasive methods that could damage the stone. 

• Stone Consolidation: For fragile gravestones and monuments, consolidate materials 
using approved techniques to prevent further degradation. 

• Documenting Repairs: Keep meticulous records of all restoration work, including 
before-and-after photographs, detailed descriptions of techniques used, and the types of 
materials employed. 

• Repairs: Address any structural issues such as cracked or leaning gravestones using 
appropriate conservation materials. Consider re-setting or re-aligning gravestones that 
have shifted over time. 

• Replacement: In cases where gravestones are irreparably damaged or missing work with 
nonprofits and organizations to create accurate replacements that match the historical 
design. For Veterans markers, contact the Veterans association for free replacements.  

 

5. Budget and Funding 



 

Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 3 

 

The budget for this project will be detailed, including estimates for labor, materials, equipment, 
and expert consultations. Funding sources may include: 

• Grants: Seek funding from national and local historic preservation grants. 
• Private Donations: Establish a donation fund for community members and descendants 

of those buried at the cemetery. 
• Partnerships: Partner with local historical societies, schools, and community 

organizations to secure additional financial support. 
• Fundraising Events: Organize events such as historical tours, auctions, or cemetery 

walks to raise funds. 

 

6. Timeline with Financials 

The restoration process will be divided into phases. In all phases community engagement is 
critical.  

1. Phase 1: Landscaping and Grounds Clearing (Months 1-2) 
Complete a comprehensive survey of the historic landscape utilizing aerial photographs 
available through WashCo GIS. Provide detailed overgrowth removal plans for 
landscaping contractors (utilizing no large earth movers or heavy equipment).  
 
Funding: Seeking support through community partners (MSU Extension and Washtenaw 
County Conservation District). Direct Funding from Washtenaw County Historic District 
Commission is available up to $5,000. 
 

2. Phase 2: Survey and Documentation (Months 3-4) 
Conduct comprehensive GPR and non-invasive survey of the cemetery to determine 
burial locations, numbers, and locations of subsurface gravestones. Develop a full 
inventory. 

Funding: requested non-invasive geophysical survey from Terracon. Awaiting reply.  

3. Phase 3: Restoration of Gravestones (Months 5-8) 
Begin repairs and restoration of gravestones and markers, focusing on the most fragile or 
damaged first. 

Funding: Michigan State Historic Preservation Office Certified Local Government Grant 
to bring in a restoration specialist to complete onsite training to multiple community 
partners. Alternatively, direct funding is available from the Washtenaw County Historic 
District Commission up to $5,000.  

4. Phase 4: Landscaping and Grounds Restoration (Months 9-12)  
Plant low maintenance ground cover. Repair pathways, manage vegetation, and install 
any necessary drainage or erosion control measures. 

https://www.terracon.com/


 

Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 4 

 

Funding: Seeking support through community partners (MSU Extension and Washtenaw 
County Conservation District). Direct Funding from Washtenaw County Historic District 
Commission is available up to $5,000. 
 

5. Phase 5: Historic Marker/Interpretive Panel Installation (Months 13-16) 
Install historic markers and interpretive panels at the site utilizing research and reporting 
from partner institutions including but not limited to: Ypsilanti Historical Society, 
African American Cultural and Historical Museum of Washtenaw County, Washtenaw 
County Genealogical Society, Eastern Michigan University Historic Preservation 
Department and Justice InDeed.   

Funding: Up to 10,000 direct funding available through the Washtenaw County Historic 
District Commission.  

 

7. Sustainability and Maintenance 

After the initial restoration work is completed, it will be important to maintain the cemetery to 
ensure its longevity: 

• Regular Inspections: Conduct biannual inspections of gravestones, monuments, and the 
grounds to detect early signs of damage. 

• Ongoing Preservation: Continue cleaning and maintaining gravestones, structures, and 
landscapes on a rotating basis. 

• Community Involvement: Encourage local groups and volunteers to help with periodic 
maintenance tasks, ensuring the cemetery remains in good condition. 

 

8. Conclusion 

The restoration of Woodlawn Cemetery is an important endeavor to preserve the historical 
integrity of a valuable cultural landmark. By following a detailed and respectful approach to 
restoration, we can ensure that future generations will be able to visit and appreciate the 
cemetery’s historical significance. Community involvement, funding, and thoughtful planning 
will play key roles in ensuring the success and sustainability of this project. 

Plan Drafted by:  
Kat Slocum 
Historic Preservation Specialist 
Office of Community & Economic Development 
415 West Michigan Avenue  
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
(734) 544-2954 
slocumk@washtenaw.org 

https://www.washtenaw.org/641/Historic-Preservation
mailto:slocumk@washtenaw.org


 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From: John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:    March 24, 2025 
 
Subject: Request to approve Amendment One of the Municipal Solid Waste,  

   Recycling and Yard Waste Contract with Waste Management for an extension of 
   five years   

 
The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to approve Amendment One for 
the Municipal Solid Waste, Recycling and Yard Waste Agreement with Waste Management that 
will add an additional five years to the existing agreement. 
 
The Township approved the existing agreement with Waste Management on September 15, 
2020, and the final contract on November 17, 2020, after an extensive bidding process. The 
current contract with Waste Management is set to expire on September 30, 2025. The proposal 
being submitted has been discussed at length with WM and will extend the existing agreement, 
but address and amend a few key points that are listed below: 
 

1. Instead of charging a variable price for Recycle Waste Disposal, WM will charge a fixed 
.96 per household fee for the entirety of the extension.   

2. Bulk Pick Up for residents will no longer need to be reported beforehand to WM staff.  
Each resident will be able to put out 1 bulk item per week, with additional charges for 
more.   

3. Update Resident and Township Charges for all cart services.   
 
If approved, starting May 2025, the recycling disposal will be charged at the fixed rate instead of 
the variable rate. The cost per household will then be $16.22, which is the current household 
price minus the variable rate that gets charged monthly. With the now fixed rate, the rate of 
$16.22 will be held for the first year of the agreement until October 1, 2026, and then 
subsequently each year, the rate will increase for trash, recycling and yard waste by just under 
four percent (4%) to $16.82, $17.46, $18.13 and $18.82 respectively. Comparing proposed 
pricing to the forecasted projections prepared by the accounting department, the WM pricing 
saves the township around $845,274.45 over the life of the extension.  The updated pricing for 
residential extra carts and township commercial carts will commence on October 1, 2025.    
 
Please reach out with any questions and thank you for your consideration. 
 





















 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:        Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:    John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:    March 25, 2025 
 
RE:  Request to approve the contracts with Destination Ann Arbor  

for Rowfest 2025 and the Ford Lake Regatta to be held on Ford Lake. 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting approval of the contracts submitted by 
Destination Ann Arbor in collaboration with Eastern Michigan University and US Rowing for 
the Ford Lake Cup Regatta Event and Rowfest events in 2025. These events would be contingent 
on final attorney review and approval.   
 
At the August 28, 2024 Special Meeting, the board approved the Park Commission 
recommendation to approve the applications submitted by DAA to host the Ford Lake Cup 
Regatta and Rowfest.  Both applications were approved for the contract to be brought forward at 
a later date.   
 
The Ford Lake Regatta will be held on April 26, 2025 and bring up to 10 Collegiate teams, with 
approximately 320-390 student athletes.  Rowfest will be held July 11-20, 2025 and would bring 
approximately 2,500 rowers from across the country. They expect 1,250 athletes to be competing 
daily. The expected economic impact would be $7,009,396.   
 
Since the board approved the applications in August of 2024, township staff have been working 
consistently with DAA, US Rowing and EMU to discuss the logistics of utilizing the park and 
preserving access to residents.  This has included multiple walk throughs of the site, building the 
site plan and creating a plan of action if approved.  If the board approves the contracts, EMU will 
provide signage to be posted at all township lake front parks for buoy education, and DAA will 
set up community engagement sessions with the township for residents to ask questions about the 
events.   
 
Destination Ann Arbor understands the importance of Ford Lake to the community and will 
work with the Township to keep open access to the lake during these events.  
 
John Hines 
Municipal Services Director 
jhines@ypsitownship.org  
 

mailto:jhines@ypsitownship.org


 1 

Facility Use Agreement 
US Rowing – Rowfest Event 

 
Date of Agreement: March 3, 2025 
Event: US Rowing – Rowfest, Ford Lake Park, July 7, 2025 – July 22, 2025 
Organizer: Destination Ann Arbor – Ann Arbor Sports Commission, 315 W. Huron St. 
Suite 340, Ann Arbor, MI 48103 
Owner: Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 7200 S. Huron River Dr. Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
1. Purpose. This Facility Use Agreement (the "Agreement") outlines the terms and 

conditions between the Ann Arbor Sports Commission (“AASC”) and the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti (“TWP”) for the use of Ford Lake Park and the facilities contained 
therein for a US Rowing - Rowfest event, hosted by AASC (the “Event”).   
 

2. Scope of Use. AASC is hosting the Event, to take place July 7, 2025 – July 22, 2025 
(“Event Dates”) at Ford Lake Park (“Park”), with further details provided in the attached 
Schedule, incorporated as part of this Agreement. The parties agree to the following 
scope:  

 
2.1. Exclusive Commercial Event Use. AASC shall have exclusive commercial use of 

the Park and the TWP shall not allow other commercial events in the Park during 
the Event Dates. The TWP may allow other events in the Park only after receiving 
written agreement from AASC. Such exclusive use does not include use by the 
general public. 
 

2.2. Priority Use of Park Spaces & Facilities. AASC shall have priority use of parking 
spaces, open onsite administrative buildings, lake access points, and Park space, 
with specific spaces and facilities agreed upon by AASC and the TWP.  

 
2.3. Right of Inspection. The TWP shall have the right to inspect its facilities being used 

by AASC. AASC shall be responsible for ensuring that all Event sponsor activities 
follow TWP Park rules and guidelines.  

 
2.4. Conformance with Rules and Regulations. AASC acknowledges that the TWP is 

subject to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission guidelines on Park and lake access, as well as 
other rules and regulations. As such, AASC will accept TWP’s requirements to 
conform the Event activities to required rules and regulations, including TWP 
ordinances as they pertain to the use of TWP parks and facilities. Additionally, 
AASC and its partners, sponsors, and vendors shall abide by the laws of Michigan 
and the United States, and shall not violate municipal ordinances. The TWP 
reserves the right to exclude any individual or group from its facilities based on 
conduct, which it determines in its discretion to be objectionable or contrary to 



 2 

community interests; AASC hereby consents to the exercise of such authority by 
the TWP. 

 
 
 

3. Rental Fees and Expenses 
 
3.1. Parking Fees. AASC and the TWP shall mutually agree upon reasonable Parking 

Fees for the Event. The TWP shall retain all revenue from the Parking Fees. The TWP 
shall provide AASC and US Rowing staff and partners free parking, the number of 
passes or spaces to be mutually agreed upon by AASC and the TWP.  The TWP shall 
manage Event parking and shall be responsible for any associated parking 
expenses, including providing parking passes or designated spaces; however, AASC 
will provide volunteers to assist with Event parking at the request of the TWP. 
 

3.2. Rental Fees. The total and complete Rental Fees for the Event shall be $35,000. 
However, the TWP agrees to offset the Rental Fees by the revenue it receives from 
the Parking Fees, such that the Parking Fees revenue will thereby reduce the total 
amount of Rental Fees. If the TWP receives $35,000 or more in revenue from the 
Parking Fees, it shall waive all Rental Fees for the Event. Rental Fees shall not be 
due before the completion of the Event; reconciliation of Parking Fees and Rental 
Fees between the TWP and AASC will be completed no later than thirty (30) days 
after the conclusion of the Event Dates. 

 
3.3. Event Expenses. AASC shall be responsible for associated Event expenses, 

including service expenses for extra trash service, field paint, and additional safety 
equipment. Such Event expenses do not include TWP staff wages or other normal 
or ongoing TWP expenses or fees that do not directly result from the Event. Event 
expenses shall be included within the Rental Fees, unless AASC and the TWP 
mutually agree to separate or otherwise adjust payment of the expenses. 

 
4. Obligations of AASC 

 
4.1. Proof of Insurance. AASC shall provide proof of insurance naming TWP as an 

additional insured on its policies for the Event no later than thirty (30) days prior to 
the start of the Event Dates.  
 

4.2. Usage Map. At least ninety (90) days before the start of the Event Dates, AASC will 
provide a proposed Usage Map for the Park that includes the space and locations 
needed for teams, spectators, lake access for participants and residents, parking, 
operations, temporary structures, and other Event activities for the TWP’s review. 
AASC and the TWP will mutually agree to a final Usage Map for the Event no less 
than thirty (30) days from the start of the Event Dates. The parties shall mutually 
agree to any modification of the final Usage Map.  



 3 

 
4.3. Safety Plan. AASC will work with the TWP, DNR, US Rowing and other entities to 

provide an approved safety plan for event operations. AASC will also provide onsite 
security for the duration of the Event as requested by the TWP. 

 
4.4. Vendors. AASC shall be responsible for procuring any necessary vendors for the 

Event. AASC will provide a list of its vendors to the TWP for access and security 
reasons.  

 
4.5. Community Information. AASC will provide Event information to be posted to the 

TWP offices and throughout the community communicating Event details, 
including days of the Event, times of the Event and other pertinent details regarding 
Event timelines and activities. AASC also agrees to conduct a community 
education session/FAQ about the Event as requested by the TWP. 

 
4.6. TWP Inclusion in Event Planning. AASC will include TWP staff in relevant Event 

planning meetings. 
 

4.7. TWP Activation Space. If Event sponsors are allocated booths or activation space, 
AASC shall afford the TWP the same opportunity. The TWP acknowledges that if it 
chooses to take advantage of such an opportunity, it is responsible for building out 
and staffing the allocated booth or activation space. 

 
5. Obligations of the TWP 

 
5.1. Park and Facilities Access. The TWP will provide access to the Park and grounds, 

including lake access points, parking spaces/areas, and use of onsite 
administrative building(s) as determined in the final Usage Map. The TWP may 
maintain the use of one or more rooms in onsite administrative buildings. 
 

5.2. Activities & Temporary Structures. The TWP shall allow the Event activities and 
associated temporary structures and tents, including the rowing course, to remain 
up and in an operational state for the duration of the Event Dates. The Event Dates 
listed include two days prior for setup and two days post for teardown, as detailed 
in the attached Schedule.  
 

5.3. Equipment and Technology. The TWP shall allow AASC to bring in equipment and 
technology to allow for wifi access onsite, as well as generators for power for Event 
activities, including PA and video systems and cooling units for temporary tents or 
structures. 
 

5.4. Maintenance. The TWP shall remain responsible for the general maintenance of 
the Park, including: 

 



 4 

a. Trash removal – remove all trash, including adding additional trash receptacles 
to meet increased needs of the Event. If an additional dumpster service is 
required to facilitate trash removal, AASC will reimburse the TWP for the said 
service. 

b. Maintaining any onsite restrooms. AASC will be responsible for any temporary 
restrooms onsite for event usage. 

c. Maintaining all common areas, including parking lots and parking areas.  
 

5.5. Safety. In coordination with AASC, the TWP shall act as liaison with local law 
enforcement and health officials to ensure Event details are communicated and 
any needed plans are in place to meet Event safety and community needs.  
 

5.6. Limitation of Liability. The TWP acknowledges that the Event is part of a larger 
event scheme, and AASC, as host of the Event but not the Event rights holder, has 
other contractual agreements and obligations with other parties (such as US 
Rowing – “AASC Parties”) that may govern the Event; however, AASC agrees that it 
will maintain sole liability for those related Event contracts to which the TWP is not 
a party.    
 

5.7. Limitations of Services. AASC understands and agrees that the TWP will perform 
its service obligations under this Agreement within the scope of its budgeted funds. 
If the TWP is unable to fulfill its service obligations due to budget restraints, it will 
not be obligated to AASC for any monetary damages, provided that the TWP notifies 
AASC in writing of such inability not less than fourteen (14) days before the Event 
Dates. 

 
6. Term and Termination  

 
6.1. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above (the “Date of 

Agreement”) and terminate upon the conclusion of the Event and the fulfillment of 
all obligations by both parties, including the Rental Fees reconciliation period in 
Section 3.2 (Rental Fees) unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 6.2 
(Termination). 

 
6.2.  Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with immediate effect: 

 
a. Upon mutual written consent of both parties.  
b.  With seven (7) days written notice to the other party if more than sixty (60) 

days from the Event Dates. 
c. If the other party materially breaches any provision of this Agreement and 

fails to remedy the breach within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving 
written notice during the Event Dates, or within seven (7) days after receiving 
written notice at any other time. If a violation of this Agreement results in an 
objective health and safety risk to users of the Park and facilities, the TWP 



 5 

reserves the right to terminate the Agreement immediately without written 
notice. 

 
6.3. Consequences of Termination. If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 

6.2 (Termination): 
 

a. Where neither party is at fault, each party’s obligations under this Agreement 
shall cease. Neither party shall be entitled to a refund of any expenses 
(including in-kind) already incurred up through such effective date of 
termination. 

b. Where TWP is the party at fault, TWP shall not be entitled to any refund of any 
expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event up to the point of 
termination. TWP shall reimburse AASC with respect to any amount AASC 
incurs to replace the Park as a venue or the services necessary for hosting 
the Event. 

c. Where AASC is the party at fault, AASC shall not be entitled to any refund of 
any expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event. TWP is entitled to the 
cost of any services rendered and expenses incurred related to the Event up 
to the point of termination.  

 
7. Cancellation / Rescheduling of Event 

 
7.1. TWP acknowledges and agrees that AASC may abandon, cancel, curtail and/or 

reschedule the Event where AASC reasonably deems it necessary to do so.  
 

7.2. In the event of any changes to the Event Dates and/or Event Location(s), AASC shall 
provide written notice of such change(s) to TWP as soon as reasonably practicable. 

 
7.3. If the Event is cancelled, curtailed, abandoned or rescheduled, or the location of 

the Event is changed, in either case whether a result of Force Majeure or otherwise, 
TWP agrees that it shall not, under any circumstances, seek to recover any form of 
compensation from AASC and shall not seek professional costs and other 
expenses, caused by and/or resulting from the cancellation, curtailment, 
abandonment or rescheduling of the Event. 

 
8. Force Majeure. If by reason of any extraordinary circumstance beyond a party’s 

reasonable control, such as serious fire, storm, and/or flood, earthquake, explosion, 
acts of a public enemy, war, insurrection, terrorist act or threat of terrorist act, 
sabotage, epidemic or pandemic, embargoes, strikes and/or labor disputes of persons 
other than such party, acts of God, acts of government whether national, municipal or 
otherwise, or any agency therefor which affects the performance of any provision of this 
Agreement by that party (a “Force Majeure Event”), such party is prevented from or 
delayed in performing any of its obligations hereunder, then such delay or non-
performance shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement and no loss or 



 6 

damage shall be claimed by any other party by reason thereof. For avoidance of doubt, 
a Force Majeure Event does not include a party being unable to fulfil its obligations 
under this Agreement as a result of a lack of funds or being or becoming insolvent. 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, if TWP is prevented from or delayed in performing any of 
its obligations hereunder by reason of any Force Majeure Event for a period of more 
than three (3) months, or for a period of more than one week during the period of two (2) 
months immediately preceding the Event Dates, AASC shall be entitled to terminate 
this Agreement without penalty or any liability to TWP. 
 

9. Warranties, Indemnity and Insurance 
 
9.1. Warranties. AASC warrants and represents to TWP, and TWP warrants and 

represents to AASC, that:  
 

a. it has the full right, power and authority to enter into and perform its 
obligations under this Agreement (including the rights to use provided 
intellectual property) which shall constitute lawful, valid and binding 
obligations in accordance with its terms;  

b. its performance of this Agreement will not breach any other agreement or 
obligation (including any law, regulation, license provision, order, judgment 
or decree) by which it is bound, nor will its performance be affected by those 
agreements or obligations (excepting any contract between the AASC Parties 
governing the Event itself) or by any litigation or dispute in which it is, or any 
of its personnel are, involved.  
 

9.2. Indemnification. AASC shall indemnify and hold harmless the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all suits, 
actions or claims of any character, type or description, including all expenses of 
litigation, court costs and attorney’s fees, brought or made for on account of any 
injuries or damages received or sustained by any person or persons or property, 
arising out of, or occasioned by, the negligent act or failure to act of the AASC or its 
agents, volunteers or employees in the use of the facilities arising out of obligations 
of the AASC as set forth in this Agreement. 

 
9.3. Insurance. AASC shall at all times during the term of this Agreement maintain in 

effect general public liability insurance covering the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI. The Charter Township of Ypsilanti STRICTLY adheres to the insurance 
requirements. These insurance requirements shall not be waived for any reason. 
The minimum amount of the policy shall be $1,000,000 general liability per 
occurrence. Please read carefully the required insurance that must be obtained. 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall be named as an additional insured on such 
policy and shall be entitled to at least a thirty day (30) day notice of cancellation or 
changes of any kind. 
 



 7 

The wording on the policy MUST read: 
“…The Charter Township of Ypsilanti and its past, present and future elected 
officials, trustees, appointed commissions and board, agents and employees shall 
be named as “additional insured” on the General Liability policy with respect to 
(event, dates, times and location). 
 
AASC acknowledges this may require an addition to its current policy or an 
additional policy, either of which could result in extra cost from its insurance 
carrier. 

 
10. General Provisions 

 
10.1. Assignment and Delegation: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, neither party may assign, transfer, or delegate any or all of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement, including by operation of law, change of control, 
or merger, without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement shall 
be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 
 

10.2. Confidentiality. The Parties acknowledge that the contents of this 
Agreement are confidential and agree, unless disclosure is required by law, court 
order or subpoena, to take whatever measures are reasonably necessary to 
preserve such confidentiality. The duties of the Parties hereunder shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  
 

10.3. Relationship of the Parties. The Parties shall be independent contractors 
pursuant to this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed to create a joint 
venture, agency, partnership, or other form of joint enterprise, employee, or 
fiduciary relationship between the Parties or an employer/employee or agency 
relationship. Neither Party shall have any express or implied right or authority to 
assume or create any obligations on behalf of or in the name of the other Party or to 
bind the other Party to any contract, agreement, or undertaking with any third party. 

 
10.4. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties and supersedes any prior agreements, written or oral. 
 

10.5. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed 
by both parties. 

 
10.6. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall 
not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render 
unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. 

 



 8 

For the TWP: 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:_______________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________ 

 
In witness thereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the 
Date of Agreement and are legally bound hereto. 
 

For the AASC: 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________ 

For the TWP: 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________ 

 
  



 9 

Schedule 
 

This Schedule is hereby incorporated as part of the Facility Use Agreement between AASC 
and the TWP. 
 
2025 Rowfest Schedule – Subject to change due to weather conditions 
*Security on Site Entire Event on Closed Hours (8pm-5am daily)  Starting Friday the 11th – 
Sunday, July 20th  
* Medical on site on practice and race days and 2 lifeguards on site – July 11th-20th 
 
Monday July 7-  

- 8:00am-5:00 pm - US Rowing On Site  
o Walkthrough of park 
o Venue layout of park  
o Tent arrival and setup (No Township Staff needed)  
o Course installation starts on water 

Tuesday, July 8th –  
- 7:00am-6:00 pm – US Rowing on Site  

o  Continued Venue Set up – (signage, fencing, setting up registration) (No 
township staff needed)  

Wednesday, July 9th  
- 7:00-6:00pm – US Rowing on Site  

o Continue Venue Set up  
o  Launches arrive and setup in water (no township staff needed) 

Thursday, July 10th  
- 7:00am-6:00pm – US Rowing on site  

o  Venue Set up 
o Township Walkthrough with staff  
o  Additional docks set up  

Friday, July 11 
- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  

o EMT Arrival Day 
o Security Arrival Day 

- 6:00am-8:00pm - Team Registration Open on Site –  
o Teams Arrive 

- 8:00am-2:00pm - Trailer Parking  
- 10am-6pm constant flow of vehicles 300 cars approximately (buses and trailers 

mostly) (Township Staff and Volunteers) 



 10 

- 11:00am-6:00pm - Team Registration  
- 12:00-6:00pm Practice on Water  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure  

 
Saturday, July 12-Saturday, July 19 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Sunday, July 13 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Monday, July 14 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
-  
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  



 11 

- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Tuesday- July 15th 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Wednesday, July 16th 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – MASTERS ARRIVE, increase of cars400-500 cars arrive (Township 

manage parking all day, peak parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance 
Needed rest of day until dusk) 

- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 8:00am-12:00pm - Racing   
- 9:00am-5:00pm – (Township staff needed – with one US Rowing Staff member) – 

30 trailers for masters arriving  
- 12:00-6:00pm – Practice  
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6:00-7:00pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

Thursday, July 17th 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 400-500 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 



 12 

- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Friday, July 18 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 400-500 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 

Saturday, July 19th  
- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 400-500 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  

8pm – US Rowing Departure 
5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
Trash assistance needed  
 
Sunday, July 20 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   



 13 

- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6:00pm – Last Race 
- 5:00-7:00 – Trailer Departure  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 7:00-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Monday, July 21 

- 7:00am-6:00pm – Vendor, Ann Arbor Sports Commission, US Rowing Clean up  
- 7:00am-12:00pm - additional trailers leaving 
- 4:00pm - township final walkthrough requested as shut down in afternoon  
- Course taken down  

 
Tuesday, July 22 

- Continued course taken down on water  

 



Facility Use Agreement 
Ann Arbor Sports Commission – EMU – Ford Lake Cup 

Date of Agreement: March 21, 2025 
Event: Ford Lake Cup, Ford Lake Park, April 25-26, 2025 
Organizer: Destination Ann Arbor – Ann Arbor Sports Commission, 315 W. Huron St. 
Suite 340, Ann Arbor, MI 48103 
Owner: Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 7200 S. Huron River Dr. Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

 
1. Purpose. This Facility Use Agreement (the "Agreement") outlines the terms and 

conditions between the Ann Arbor Sports Commission (“AASC”) and the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti (“TWP”) for the use of Ford Lake Park and the facilities contained 
therein for a Ford Lake Cup - Collegiate event, hosted by AASC (the “Event”). 

2. Scope of Use. AASC is hosting the Event, to take place April 25-26, 2025 (“Event 
Dates”) at Ford Lake Park (“Park”). The parties agree to the following scope: 

2.1. Exclusive Event Use. AASC shall have partial use of the Park and the TWP to be 
agreed upon by the township. The TWP may allow other events in the Park. 

 
2.2. Priority Use of Park Spaces & Facilities. AASC shall have priority use of limited 

number of parking spaces, lake access points, and Park space. 

2.3. Conformance with Rules and Regulations. AASC acknowledges that the TWP is 
subject to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission guidelines on Park and lake access, as well as 
other rules and regulations. As such, AASC will accept TWP’s requirements to 
conform the Event activities to required rules and regulations, including TWP 
ordinances as they pertain to the use of TWP parks and facilities. Additionally, 
AASC and its partners, sponsors, and vendors shall abide by the laws of Michigan 
and the United States, and shall not violate municipal ordinances. The TWP 
reserves the right to exclude any individual or group from its facilities based on 
conduct, which it determines in its discretion to be objectionable or contrary to 
community interests; AASC hereby consents to the exercise of such authority by 
the TWP. 

 
 
3. Rental Fees and Expenses 

3.1. Rental Fees. The total and complete Rental Fees for the Event shall be $500.00. 
 
 

3.2. Event Expenses. AASC shall be responsible for associated Event expenses. 



4. Obligations of AASC 

4.1. Proof of Insurance. AASC shall provide proof of insurance naming TWP as an 
additional insured on its policies for the Event no later than thirty (30) days prior to 
the start of the Event Dates. 

4.2. Usage Map. At least ninety (30) days before the start of the Event Dates, AASC will 
provide a proposed Usage Map for the Park that includes the space and locations 
needed for teams, spectators, lake access for participants and residents, parking, 
operations, temporary structures, and other Event activities for the TWP’s review. 
AASC and the TWP will mutually agree to a final Usage Map for the Event no less 
than thirty (30) days from the start of the Event Dates. The parties shall mutually 
agree to any modification of the final Usage Map. 

 
4.3. Safety Plan. AASC will work with the TWP, DNR, EMU and other entities to provide 

an approved safety plan for event operations. AASC will also provide onsite security 
for the duration of the Event as requested by the TWP. 

4.4. TWP Inclusion in Event Planning. AASC will include TWP staff in relevant Event 
planning meetings. 

4.5. TWP Activation Space. If Event sponsors are allocated booths or activation space, 
AASC shall afford the TWP the same opportunity. The TWP acknowledges that if it 
chooses to take advantage of such an opportunity, it is responsible for building out 
and staffing the allocated booth or activation space. 

 
5. Obligations of the TWP 

5.1. Park and Facilities Access. The TWP will provide access to the Park and grounds, 
including lake access points, parking spaces/areas, and use of onsite 
administrative building(s) as determined in the final Usage Map. 

 
5.2. Activities & Temporary Structures. The TWP shall allow the Event activities and 

associated temporary structures and tents, including the rowing course, to remain 
up and in an operational state for the duration of the Event Dates. The Event Dates 
listed include two days prior for setup and two day post for teardown. 

 
5.3. Equipment and Technology. The TWP shall allow AASC to bring in equipment and 

technology to allow for wifi access onsite. 

5.4. Maintenance. The TWP shall remain responsible for the general maintenance of 
the Park, including: 



1.3 Trash removal – remove all trash, including adding additional trash receptacles 
to meet increased needs of the Event. 

2.3 AASC will be responsible for any temporary restrooms onsite for event usage. 
3.3 Maintaining all common areas, including parking lots and parking areas. 

 
5.5. Safety. AASC will serve as liaison with local law enforcement and health officials 

to ensure Event details are communicated and any needed plans are in place to 
meet Event safety and community needs. AASC will keep TWP aware of all relevant 
details. 

 
5.6. Limitation of Liability. AASC agrees that it will maintain sole liability for those 

related Event contracts in which the TWP is not a party. 

5.7. Limitations of Services. AASC understands and agrees that the TWP will perform 
its service obligations under this Agreement within the scope of its budgeted funds. 
If the TWP is unable to fulfill its service obligations due to budget restraints, it will 
not be obligated to AASC for any monetary damages, provided that the TWP notifies 
AASC in writing of such inability not less than fourteen (14) days before the Event 
Dates. 

 
6. Term and Termination 

 
6.1. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above (the “Date of 

Agreement”) and terminate upon the conclusion of the Event and the fulfillment of 
all obligations by both parties, including the Rental Fees reconciliation period in 
Section 3.1 (Rental Fees) unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 6.2 
(Termination). 

6.2. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with immediate effect: 

1.1.2 Upon mutual written consent of both parties. 
1.2.2 With seven (7) days written notice to the other party if more than sixty 

(30) days from the Event Dates. 
1.3.2 If the other party materially breaches any provision of this Agreement 

and fails to remedy the breach within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving 
written notice during the Event Dates, or within seven (7) days after receiving 
written notice at any other time. If a violation of this Agreement results in an 
objective health and safety risk to users of the Park and facilities, the TWP 
reserves the right to terminate the Agreement immediately without written 
notice. 

 
6.3. Consequences of Termination. If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 

6.2 (Termination): 



1.1.2 Where neither party is at fault, each party’s obligations under this 
Agreement shall cease. Neither party shall be entitled to a refund of any 
expenses (including in-kind) already incurred up through such effective date 
of termination. 

1.2.2 Where TWP is the party at fault, TWP shall not be entitled to any 
refund of any expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event up to the point 
of termination. TWP shall indemnify AASC in accordance with Section Error! 
Reference source not found. (Indemnification) with respect to any amount 
AASC incurs to replace the Park as a venue or the services necessary for 
hosting the Event. 

1.3.2 Where AASC is the party at fault, AASC shall not be entitled to any 
refund of any expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event. TWP is entitled 
to the cost of any services rendered and expenses incurred related to the 
Event up to the point of termination. 

 
7. Cancellation / Rescheduling of Event 

 
7.1. TWP acknowledges and agrees that AASC may abandon, cancel, curtail and/or 

reschedule the Event where AASC reasonably deems it necessary to do so. 
 

7.2. In the event of any changes to the Event Dates and/or Event Location(s), AASC shall 
provide written notice of such change(s) to TWP as soon as reasonably practicable. 

7.3. If the Event is cancelled, curtailed, abandoned or rescheduled, or the location of 
the Event is changed, in either case whether a result of Force Majeure or otherwise, 
TWP agrees that it shall not, under any circumstances, seek to recover any form of 
compensation from AASC and shall not seek professional costs and other 
expenses, caused by and/or resulting from the cancellation, curtailment, 
abandonment or rescheduling of the Event. 

 
8. Force Majeure. If by reason of any extraordinary circumstance beyond a party’s 

reasonable control, such as serious fire, storm, and/or flood, earthquake, explosion, 
acts of a public enemy, war, insurrection, terrorist act or threat of terrorist act, 
sabotage, epidemic or pandemic, embargoes, strikes and/or labor disputes of persons 
other than such party, acts of God, acts of government whether national, municipal or 
otherwise, or any agency therefor which affects the performance of any provision of this 
Agreement by that party (a “Force Majeure Event”), such party is prevented from or 
delayed in performing any of its obligations hereunder, then such delay or non- 
performance shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement and no loss or 
damage shall be claimed by any other party by reason thereof. For avoidance of doubt, 
a Force Majeure Event does not include a party being unable to fulfil its obligations 
under this Agreement as a result of a lack of funds or being or becoming insolvent. 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, if TWP is prevented from or delayed in performing any of 
its obligations hereunder by reason of any Force Majeure Event for a period of more 



than three (3) months, or for a period of more than one week during the period of two (2) 
months immediately preceding the Event Dates, AASC shall be entitled to terminate 
this Agreement without penalty or any liability to TWP. 

9. Warranties, Indemnity and Insurance 
 

9.1. Warranties. AASC warrants and represents to TWP, and TWP warrants and 
represents to AASC, that: 

 
1.1.2 it has the full right, power and authority to enter into and perform its 

obligations under this Agreement (including the rights to use provided 
intellectual property) which shall constitute lawful, valid and binding 
obligations in accordance with its terms; 

1.2.2 its performance of this Agreement will not breach any other 
agreement or obligation (including any law, regulation, license provision, 
order, judgment or decree) by which it is bound, nor will its performance be 
affected by those agreements or obligations (excepting any contract between 
the AASC Parties governing the Event itself) or by any litigation or dispute in 
which it is, or any of its personnel are, involved. 

 
9.2. Indemnification. 

1.3 Neither Party shall be liable in contract, tort (including 
negligence) or otherwise for (a) any indirect or consequential loss arising under or in 
connection with this Agreement; or (b) any loss of business opportunity, revenue or 
profits arising under or in connection with this Agreement (whether arising directly or 
indirectly); provided, however, that the limitations of liability stipulated in this Section 
9.1 shall not apply with respect to any act or omission of either Party that constitutes 
fraud or gross negligence. 

2.3 Subject to Section 9.3 below, the Parties agree that the total 
aggregate liability of USRowing to LOC under or in connection with this Agreement 
(whether arising from breach of contract, negligence or otherwise) shall not exceed 
the LOC Fee. 

3.3 The limitation of liability stipulated in Section 9.1 and 9.2 above 
shall not apply: 

3.1.2 To the extent that such limitation or exclusion is not permitted 
by applicable law; 

3.2.2  To any liability of LOC in connection with Section 8 or Section 12 
of this Agreement. 

 
9.3. Insurance. AASC shall at all times during the term of this Agreement maintain in 

effect general public liability insurance covering the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI. The Charter Township of Ypsilanti STRICTLY adheres to the insurance 
requirements. These insurance requirements shall not be waived for any reason. 
The minimum amount of the policy shall be $1,000,000 general liability per 



occurrence. Please read carefully the required insurance that must be obtained. 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall be named as an additional insured on such 
policy and shall be entitled to at least a thirty day (30) day notice of cancellation or 
changes of any kind. 

 
The wording on the policy MUST read: 
“…The Charter Township of Ypsilanti and its past, present and future elected 
officials, trustees, appointed commissions and board, agents and employees shall 
be named as “additional insured” on the General Liability policy with respect to 
(event, dates, times and location). 

AASC acknowledges this may require an addition to its current policy or an 
additional policy, either of which could result in extra cost from its insurance 
carrier. 

 
10. General Provisions 

10.1. Assignment and Delegation: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, neither party may assign, transfer, or delegate any or all of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement, including by operation of law, change of control, 
or merger, without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement shall 
be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 

 
10.2. Confidentiality. The Parties acknowledge that the contents of this 

Agreement are confidential and agree, unless disclosure is required by law, court 
order or subpoena, to take whatever measures are reasonably necessary to 
preserve such confidentiality. The duties of the Parties hereunder shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

10.3. Relationship of the Parties. The Parties shall be independent contractors 
pursuant to this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed to create a joint 
venture, agency, partnership, or other form of joint enterprise, employee, or 
fiduciary relationship between the Parties or an employer/employee or agency 
relationship. Neither Party shall have any express or implied right or authority to 
assume or create any obligations on behalf of or in the name of the other Party or to 
bind the other Party to any contract, agreement, or undertaking with any third party. 

10.4. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties and supersedes any prior agreements, written or oral. 

10.5. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed 
by both parties. 



For the TWP: 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________ 

10.6. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall 
not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render 
unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. 

 
In witness thereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the 
Date of Agreement and are legally bound hereto. 

 
For the AASC: 

By:   

Name:   
Title:   

Date:   

For the TWP: 

By:   
 

Name:   
Title:   

Date:   
 





 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:        Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:    John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:    March 26, 2025 
 
RE: Request authorization to Accept the bid for $364,000 from The Diamond 

Firm, INC for the Appleridge Park playground replacement and walkway 
paving which is funded through the Washtenaw County Development Block 
Grant program. 

  
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to accept Spicer Group’s 
recommendation of the bid and authorize the signing of the agreement with The Diamond Firm 
for $364,000 for the paving of the walkway and playground replacement at Appleridge Park 
which is budgeted in 213-901-974.008 and funded through a Washtenaw County Development 
Block Grant.  This award would be contingent upon the contractor’s compliance with all 
applicable CDBG requirements and approvals.   
 
At the February 21,2023 Board of Trustees Meeting, the board approved the Township to submit 
an application to the Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic Development for 
the 2023 Community Development Block Grant Funds.  The application for 2023 focused on 
applying the funds from 2021, 2022 and 2023 for the park improvements at Appleridge Park.  
The Improvements focused on improvements on the walkway around the park and replacing the 
playground equipment, base and nearby sitework.   
 
At the May 21, 2024 board of trustee’s meeting, the board approved the request for proposal to 
be posted on MITN when prepared.  Due to the required environmental review and steps 
required by the grant, Spicer and the township chose to post the RFP in January 2025.  The bids 
were posted on January 17, 2025 and opened February 27, 2025.  The township received a total 
of seven bids.  The Diamond Firm was the third lowest bidder in price, but the lowest qualified 
bidder.  They are being selected after an extensive reference check on their company and the 
subcontractors listed in their bid.  The lowest cost bid was from Best Asphalt and the bid was 
rescinded due to an incomplete submission, and the second lowest bid was from Premier Group 
Associates which raised concerns on qualifications from past experience on similar projects.   
 
 
Full Bid Tab is below:  
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

         Appleridge Park    
 
Best Asphalt, Inc:    $192,936.40     (Withdrawn)   
 
Premier Group Associates:   $323,650.97  
 
The Diamond Firm, Inc:   $364,000.00  
 
KAB Enterprises:    $380,559.71  
 
Decima, LLC:     $387,949.46 
 
Major Contracting Group:   $464,200.00  
 
DMC Consultants:     $628,325.17  
 
 
 
 
John Hines 
Municipal Services Director 
jhines@ypsitownship.org 







 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS



ADJOURNMENT 


	April 1, 2025 Regular Board Meeting
	Approval of Agenda
	Agenda for April 1, 2025 Regular Board Meeting
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes from March 18, 2025 Board Meeting
	Statements & Checks April 1, 2025
	Attorney Report
	New Business
	1. Lease Agreement for 14A-2 Courtroom and Office Suite
	2. Resolution 2025-07, Sale of 1687 Emerson Ave.
	3. Munivate Agreement
	4. Resolution 2025-08, WRRMA Appointment
	5. 2025-09 Michigan DNR Fund Application
	6. Resolution 2025-10, Michigan DNR Trust Fund Grant Application
	7. Resolution 2025-11, Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan
	8. Waste Management Five Year Extension
	9.. Destination Ann Arbor-Rowfest
	Authorizations and Bids
	1. Accept Bid from Diamond Firm, Inc for Appleridge Park Playground
	Other Business
	Public Comments
	Board Member Comments
	Adjournment
	Township Draft Contract Ford Lake Cup.pdf
	Facility Use Agreement
	3. Rental Fees and Expenses
	4. Obligations of AASC
	5. Obligations of the TWP
	6. Term and Termination
	7. Cancellation / Rescheduling of Event
	9. Warranties, Indemnity and Insurance
	9.2. Indemnification.
	10. General Provisions




